

Gateway Installation and User Guide

4011G Version 9.1.1 Rev. 001

Notice to Users

©2005–2009 2Wire, Inc. All rights reserved. This manual in whole or in part, may not be reproduced, translated, or reduced to any machine-readable form without prior written approval.

2WIRE PROVIDES NO WARRANTY WITH REGARD TO THIS MANUAL, THE SOFTWARE, OR OTHER INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN AND HEREBY EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE WITH REGARD TO THIS MANUAL, THE SOFTWARE, OR SUCH OTHER INFORMATION, IN NO EVENT SHALL 2WIRE, INC. BE LIABLE FOR ANY INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR SPECIAL DAMAGES, WHETHER BASED ON TORT, CONTRACT, OR OTHERWISE, ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS MANUAL, THE SOFTWARE, OR OTHER INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN OR THE USE THEREOF.

2Wire, Inc. reserves the right to make any modification to this manual or the information contained herein at any time without notice. The software described herein is governed by the terms of a separate user license agreement.

Updates and additions to software may require an additional charge. Subscriptions to online service providers may require a fee and credit card information. Financial services may require prior arrangements with participating financial institutions.

2Wire, the 2Wire logo, HomePortal, and MediaPortal are registered trademarks of 2Wire, Inc. All other trademarks are trademarks of their respective owners.

12222009

5100-000764-000

Contents

CHAPTER 1	Presenting the 4011G Gateway1
CHAPTER 2	Installing Your Gateway3
	Determining a Wireless Access Point Location
	Avoiding Interference
	Avoiding Obstructions4
	Installing the DSL Filter4
	Connecting the Power Adapter6
	Connecting the Phone Line
	Connecting Your Computer to the Gateway
	Connecting via Ethernet Ports
	Connecting via Wireless
	Configuring Wireless Adapters8
	Starting Your Gateway
CHAPTER 3	Starting the User Interface
	Navigating the User Interface
	Setting up Your Password
	Changing the Current Password
	Configuring Date and Time
	Overriding Automatic Date and Time Configuration
CHAPTER 4	Configuring the Wireless Network
	Setting up your Wireless Network
	Securing up your Wireless Network 28
	Using the Encryption Key 28
	Using the MAC Address Filtering
	Customize Private Wireless Settings
CHAPTER 5	Configuring Firewall Settings
	Hosting Applications 33
	Removing Hosted Applications 35
	Defining New Application Profiles 37
	Deleting Application Profiles
CHAPTER 6	Configuring LAN Devices
-	Adding New Static Routes 46
	Configuring DHCP 47
	Allocating an Address Rool for All Devices
	Allocating an Address Fool for All Devices

CHAPTER 7	Configuring the Broadband Connection	61
	Configuring DSL and ATM Settings	
	Configuring the Connection Type	
	Configuring PPP Authentication and Settings	
	Modifying Broadband IP Addresses	
	Specifying DNS Information Manually	
	Overriding the System MAC Address	
	Changing to the Bridging Mode	
CHAPTER 8	Finding Solutions	
	Diagnosing Connection Issues	
	Recovering the Gateway Password	
	Performing Broadband Link Tests	
	Viewing the Gateway Information	
	Viewing the Broadband Status	
	Viewing the LAN Status	
	Resetting the Gateway	

CHAPTER 1 Presenting the 4011G Gateway

The 2Wire HomePortal® 4011G Gateway is the first point of contact between you, your service provider, and your digital home. This all-in-one intelligent manageable device includes modem, router, wireless access point, firewall and more.

The 2Wire 4011G Gateway supports ADSL, ADSL2, and ADSL2+ technology. It is available with a single Ethernet LAN port or an optional four Ethernet LAN ports and an 802.11b/g wireless interface. The 2Wire 4011G Gateway includes an array of the most common home networking technologies accommodating a variety of environments.

Setting up the 4011G Gateway is simple; it requires no complicated installation. Within minutes of unpacking the shipping box and connecting several color-coded cables, you can immediately access the Internet.

This page is intentionally left blank.

CHAPTER 2 Installing Your Gateway

Before installing your gateway, review the package content and ensure that you have items available as shown below.



Note The gateway and the stand are packaged separately in the container. You should place the gateway on the stand.

Installing your gateway consists of the following tasks:

- Determining a Wireless Access Point Location on page 4
- Installing the DSL Filter on page 4
- Connecting the Power Adapter on page 6
- Connecting the Phone Line on page 7
- Connecting Your Computer to the Gateway on page 7
- Configuring Wireless Adapters on page 8
- Starting Your Gateway on page 9

Determining a Wireless Access Point Location

Wireless signals are affected by many items in common households. Reliability and performance are the major considerations when planning your wireless network location.

Avoiding Interference

Wireless signals are subject to interference from other electronic devices including (but not limited to) microwave ovens, cordless telephones, and garage door openers. Proper installation will minimize interference. Place your gateway at least 5 feet (1.52 meters) from cordless phones, microwaves, or other electronic devices to avoid potential interference, and more than 6 inches (15.24 centimeters) away from television to avoid audio hissing or static.

Note Whenever possible, use the stand provided with the gateway and install it in the vertical position. If that is not possible, be sure that it is installed in a manner that nothing can be stacked on the top of it.

Avoiding Obstructions

The wireless signal degrades with distance and obstructions (such as ceilings, walls, and furniture). Consider the layout of your home or business when deciding where to place your gateway.

- Consider where you will use your wireless devices when placing your gateway. In a singlestory building, place the gateway as high and as close to each wireless computer as possible. To minimize interference, do not place the gateway behind large objects or other obstructions.
- Place the gateway in an open area where wireless range will not be directly affected by surroundings. Wireless signal strength will be much stronger in an open area as opposed to an area with obstructions.
- Keep the gateway away from any large metal objects. Because metal objects can reflect or obstruct signals, wireless signal quality and speed may be adversely impacted.

Installing the DSL Filter

Regular telephone and Digital Subscriber Line (DSL) signals are carried over the same line. Converting your regular telephone line to DSL can cause high-pitched tones and static when using the phone. Installing a filter on every telephone or telephone device sharing the same telephone number as your DSL separates these signals and eliminates the noise.

Note Do *not* install DSL filters if your telephone line is only carrying a DSL signal.

You need one DSL Phoneline filter for each telephone device (desktop phone, analog modem, FAX, or answering machine). If you have several telephone devices connected to each other and are using a single telephone wall jack, install only one filter, connecting it between the wall jack and the first device in the series.

Note Do not connect a 2Wire DSL Phoneline filter to an ADSL modem or to a home phoneline network adapter. The filter blocks access to the phone line for these devices.

For an Individual Device

To install the DSL Phoneline filter, simply connect the cable from your telephone device to the 2Wire DSL Phoneline filter, then connect the cable from the filter to your telephone wall outlet.



For Wall-Mounted Telephones

To install the filter between the original wall plate and your wall-mounted phone:

- 1. Lift the telephone from the wall pegs, and disconnect the phone cord from the wall jack.
- **2.** Connect the phone cord from the back of the 2Wire DSL filter into the wall jack, and mount the filter on the wall plate pegs.



3. Connect the phone cord to the phone jack located on the front of the mounted 2Wire DSL filter.

Note If you have a DSL modem, you can connect it to the phone jack located at the bottom of the filter.

4. Attach the telephone to the mounting pegs on the 2Wire DSL filter and your installation is complete.



Connecting the Power Adapter

- 1. Connect one end of the power adapter to the **POWER** port of your gateway.
- 2. Connect the other end of power adapter to an electrical outlet.

Note You can use an AC extension cord provided it is compliant to local regulatory requirements.



Connecting the Phone Line

- 1. Connect one end of the telephone line (gray) to the **PHONE LINE** port of your gateway.
- 2. Connect the other end of the telephone line to the DSL Phoneline filter if one is used, or to the telephone wall outlet.



Connecting Your Computer to the Gateway

There are two ways to connect your computer to the gateway: via Ethernet or Wireless. With either connection, the first computer you connect to the network is used to configure the gateway for proper operation.

Connecting via Ethernet Ports

You can directly connect up to four computers to the gateway using the Ethernet connection. Connect one end of the Ethernet cable (yellow) to any available ETHERNET port (yellow) on the gateway and the other end to the computer's Ethernet port.

You are now ready to start your gateway.

Note A 6-foot Ethernet cable is provided with your gateway. Use a CAT5 RJ-45 cable if you need additional or longer Ethernet cable.



Connecting via Wireless

Your gateway has an integrated Wi-Fi access point (AP) that enables you to connect your wireless-enabled computers to your home network. By default, the gateway is shipped with WEP enabled and a preconfigured network name. Refer to the Configuring the Wireless Network section to configure your wireless network.

Most laptop computers are equipped with an internal 802.11b/g card. If your computer is not equipped with an internal card, you can install an external wireless adapter for wireless networking. The 2Wire wireless adapter provides a 2Wire Setup Wizard that automatically configures it to communicate with the gateway during setup. If you are using a non-2Wire wireless adapter, you must manually configure it to communicate with the gateway. Refer to the Configuring Wireless Adapters section to install a wireless network adapter.

Configuring Wireless Adapters

You must manually configure the Wireless adapter to communicate with the gateway. This section provides instructions to configure your adapter with WPA.

- 1. Install and configure your wireless adapter according to the manufacturer's instructions.
- 2. Use the network adapter configuration software or Windows network connection wizard to set the network name (SSID) and encryption key (WPA).



- 3. Enter **2WIRE** (in capital letters) as the network name, followed by the last three digits of the gateway serial number (for example, 2WIRE110), located on the bottom of your gateway.
- 4. Enter the encryption key that is located inside the brackets beneath the bar code on the bottom of your gateway, (for example, 1234567890).

Note For Mac OS X users, you may need to enter the "\$" character at the beginning of the encryption key (for example, \$1234567890).

Starting Your Gateway

When cables are connected, your gateway is ready to be turned on. The **POWER** switch is located on the back of the gateway. The following illustration shows the **POWER** switch location and the table lists and describes the indicators when the gateway is operating under different states.



Gateway Indicators Description

Indicators	Description
POWER	The POWER indicator is off for a brief period of time, and then changes to solid green within few seconds of power application.
	Constant green indicates that power is on.Red indicates that the gateway is faulty.
ETHERNET 1 – 4	 Solid green indicates that a device (such as a computer) is connected to an ETHERNET port. Flickering green indicates that inbound activity from devices is associated with the Ethernet port. The flickering of the light is synchronized to the actual data traffic.
WIRELESS	 Solid green indicates that there is Wireless client associated to a specific Access Point. Flickering green indicates that there is inbound/outbound activity. The flickering of the light is synchronized to the actual data traffic.
BROADBAND	 This indicator shows the gateway DSL status. Constant green indicates successful broadband connection and no interruption in Internet access. Flashing green indicates that the gateway is attempting to establish a broadband connection. Red indicates that there is no DSL signal.
SERVICE	 Constant green indicates that the gateway has obtained a WAN IP address from your service provider through the DHCP or PPP connection and the broadband connection is up. Flashing green at a faster pace indicates that the gateway is attempting to obtain an IP address. Flashing green at a slower pace indicates that the service provider's network is not responding, a misconfiguration, or an authentication failure.

This page is intentionally left blank.

CHAPTER 3 Starting the User Interface

Verify that your computers have one of the following browsers installed:

- Microsoft Internet Explorer 5.5 or higher
- Mozilla Firefox 2.0 or higher
- Safari 2.0

Navigating the User Interface

The *Home* page appears when you enter one of the following URLs into a compatible browser on a computer connected to the gateway.

- http://gateway.2Wire.net
- http://home
- http://192.168.1.254

This page contains four panes. The following section describes each pane that is indicated by the numbered red arrow.

lome	Settings	Site Map				
Summ	ary Broadband	Wirele	55 Name: 00002	Firewall Status: Enabled	1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1 (1	4011G-001 Gateway Serial Number:
Home S gch	Network Dev andran <u>Device D</u> e	ices etails			M.1	28091 A000002
Top Ne • <u>Wi</u> • Re	etworking Fea <u>reless</u> - modify s fresh your Broad	atures ecurity or settings band Connection -	reconnect your			
br • <u>Re</u>	oadband connect start your Systen	ion <u>n</u> - reboot				
• <u>Ho</u> • <u>Sv</u>	me Networking - stem Password -	find a computer, s secure your system	hare a file with a password			
• <u>Int</u> att	<u>ernet security</u> - acks	monitor attempted	and blocked			

- 1. The *tab* pane of the user interface contains the following three tabs that are arranged horizontally. Clicking any of these tabs displays a page that enables you to access associated information.
 - The *Home* tab provides the most relevant information about your broadband service at a glance. It also provides links to access more detailed information.
 - The Settings tab provides the most comprehensive system information. Clicking this tab opens a page that provides sub-tabs to access other pages to configure your gateway and view system status.
 - The *Site Map* tab provides a textual view of the user interface. Clicking any links on this page takes you directly to the page of interest.
- 2. The *Summary* pane displays the status of each service. Except the fourth icon, gateway, you can click other icons to directly access more information.
 - The Broadband icon 🔮 displays the Internet upload and download rates in kbps.
 - The Wireless icon provide displays the wireless network name.
 - The *Firewall* icon signal displays the current Firewall status- enabled or disabled.

• The 4011G Gateway icon

4011G Gateway Serial Number: 3071109901

- **3.** The *Home Network Devices* pane displays all devices that are connected to the gateway. You can click the links to view the detailed information of the connected devices.
- **4.** The *Top Networking Features* pane provides shortcuts to directly access the most commonly used pages.

Setting up Your Password

A system password protects your gateway settings from being modified or changed by someone who has not been given permission to do so. When a password is set up, you will be required to enter a system password whenever you attempt to access a configuration page (for example, when you try to change the broadband connection settings).

To set up a password:

1. Open a Web browser and enter *http://home, http://gateway.2Wire.net, or http://192.168.1.254* to access the gateway user interface; the *Home* page opens.



2. Click Settings then click Password; the Administration Password page opens.

— Or —

Click System Password from the *Top Networking Features* pane; the *Administration Password* page opens.

2WiRE

Home	Settings	Site	Map		
System Ir	nfo Broadb	and	LAN	Firewall	Diagnostics
Status	Password Da	ıte & Tim	e		
The admir password unauthor	istration ras histration passw I. It is strongly re ized changes.	ord restr	icts syste ded that	em configura you enable p	ation changes from being made to users who know the password security to protect your system from
Enable	Password Pro	tection]	
Enter C	urrent Passwo	ord:			
Select P	assword:	0	Use Det	ault System or Edit a Cu	password (printed on the base of the system)
		•	Enter N	ew Passwor	d:
			Confirm	n New Passv	vord:
			Enter a	Password H	lint:
			Note: W also set be a wo you for	hen you cho t up a passw ord, phrase, get it.	iose to password protect the system settings, you should iord hint in case you forget your password. This hint can or question that will help you remember your password if
			Locati and W the bo	on of SSID IFI Key on Ittom label	
			E Se	rial Number	Default Password
					Save

3. Select the Enable Password Protection check box.

Note Make sure to select this check box or your password will not save.

- 4. Select the password option:
 - When **Use Default System password** is selected, no further action is required, go to 7.
 - When Create or Edit a Custom Password is selected, continue with the next step.

Note The default system password is printed on the bottom of the gateway.

5. Enter a new password having minimum 6 alphanumeric characters in the Enter New Password field.

Note The password is case-sensitive and prompts an error message if you enter less than 6 alphanumeric characters.

6. Re-enter the new password in **Confirm New Password** field.

Note Although optional, it is strongly recommended that you enter a password hint to remind you if you forget your password.

7. Click Save; a message appears informing you of the status.

Changing the Current Password

To change the current password:

1. Open a Web browser and enter *http://home, http://gateway.2Wire.net, or http://192.168.1.254* to access the gateway user interface; the *Home* page opens.

	SE					
Home	Settings	Site Map				
	·					
Summa Mome I Se geh	ary Broadban 9085 kbps 9508 kbps S08 kbps Network Dev andran <u>Device C</u>	d Wire Netwo INFINI rices etails	i less ork Name: TUM0002		Firewall Status: Enabled	4011G-001 Gateway Serial Number: 28091A000002
Top Ne	etworking Fe	atures				
• <u>Win</u>	<u>reless</u> - modify s	ecurity or settir	ıgs			
• <u>Ret</u> bro	oadband connec	tion	<u>1</u> - reconne	ct your		
• <u>Re</u> :	<u>start your Syste</u>	<u>n</u> - reboot				
• <u>Ho</u>	me Networking	- find a compute	r, share a fi	le		
• <u>Sv</u> s	stem Password -	secure your sys	tem with a j	password		
• <u>Int</u> att	<u>ernet security</u> - acks	monitor attemp	ted and blo	cked		
• <u>Ga</u> set	<u>ming and Comm</u> tings	<u>unications</u> - mo	dify your fir	rewall		

2. Click Settings then click Password; the Administration Password page opens.

— Or —

Click System Password from the *Top Networking Features* pane; the *Administration Password* page opens.

2WiRE'

Home Settings Site	Мар
System Info Broadband L	AN Firewall Diagnostics
Status Password Date & Time	
Administration Password	
The administration password restri password. It is strongly recommend unauthorized changes.	cts system configuration changes from being made to users who know the ed that you enable password security to protect your system from
Enable Password Protection:	
Enter Current Password:	
Select Password:	Use Default System password (printed on the base of the system)
۲	Create or Edit a Custom Password:
	Enter New Password:
	Confirm New Password:
	Enter a Password Hint:
	Note: When you choose to password protect the system settings, you should also set up a password hint in case you forget your password. This hint can be a word, phrase, or question that will help you remember your password if you forget it.
	Location of SSID and WFF Key on the bottom label
	Serial Number 🔵 Default Password
	Save

- 3. Verify that the Enable Password Protection check box is selected.
- 4. Enter the current password in the Enter Current Password field.
- 5. Select the password option:
 - When Use **Default System password** is selected, no further action is required, go to 8.
 - When Create or Edit a Custom Password is selected, continue with the next step.

Note The default system password is printed on the bottom of the gateway.

6. Enter a new password between 5 and 31 alphanumeric characters in the Enter New Password field.

Note The password is case-sensitive.

7. Re-enter the new password in Confirm New Password field.

Note Although optional, it is strongly recommended that you enter a password hint to remind you if you forget your password.

8. Click Save; a message appears informing you of the status.

Configuring Date and Time

The 2Wire gateway sets the time automatically using time servers on the Internet. It retrieves date and time information in Greenwich Mean Time (GMT). Your local time is set using the Time Zone setting you configured when you set up your system.

To change your time zone settings:

1. Open a Web browser and enter *http://home, http://gateway.2Wire.net, or http://192.168.1.254* to access the gateway user interface; the *Home* page opens.

2Wire

Home	Settings	Site Map				
Summa Mome I Se gene Top Ne Wir Bra	ary Broadbanc 9085 kbps \$ 508 kbps Some and the set of the set	d Wire Netwo INFINI rices etails atures ecurity or settin band Connection	eless ork Name: ITUM0002	your	Firewall Status: Enabled	4011G-001 Gateway Serial Number: 28091A000002
• <u>Ho</u>	me Networking -	· find a compute	r, share a file			
• <u>Svs</u>	tem Password -	secure your sys	tem with a pa	ssword		
• <u>Int</u> att	<u>ernet security</u> - acks	monitor attemp	ted and block	ed		
• <u>Ga</u> set	ming and Comm tings	<u>unications</u> - mo	dify your firev	wall		

2. Click Settings; the Settings page opens displaying the system information.

2WiRE

Home	Settings	Site Map		
System	nfo Broadb	and LAN	Firewall	Diagnostics
Status	Password Da	te & Time		
System	n Information	1		
Manufa	cturer:	2Wire		
Model:		4011G-001		
Serial	Number:	28091 A00008	33	
Hardwa	re Version:	2700-000780	-001	
Softwa	re Version:	9.1.1.12		
Key Co	de:	52AD-2AD4-6	266-22NA-B	827M
First U	se Date:	Fri Nov 20 05	:30:31 UTC 20	2009
Curren	t Date & Time	: 12-22-20098	01:38:14	
Time S	ince Last Boot	3:53		
DSL Mo	dem	A2pB025f6.d2	2	
System	Password:	Custom: *****	¢	

3. Click Date & Time; a page similar to the following opens.

EWISE.

Home	Set	tings	Site	Map]		
System I	nfo	Broad	band	LAN	Firewall	Diagnostics	
Status	Pass	sword D	ate & T	ime			
Curren	t Tir	ne Setti	ngs				
Time Z	one:	(GMT-0	(8:00) Pac	ific Time - U	JS and Canada; T	uana 👻	
Dat	te:	Friday	, Septe	mber 04,	2009		
Tim	ie:	04:03:	40 AM				
Time C Manua	Confi I Con	guratio figurati	n on:	Ove	rride automa	tic time configuration	
Set	Time:					(hh:mm:ss)	
Set	Date:					(yyyy/mm/dd)	
Daylig	ht Sav	vings Ti	me:	🖻 Auto	omatically a	just for daylight savings	
Time S	erve	rs					
Primar	y Tin	e Serve	r	ntp1.2wire	e.com		
Second	ary 1	ime Ser	ver	ntp2.2wire	e.com		
							Save

- 4. Select the appropriate time zone from the Time Zone drop-down list.
- 5. Click Save.

Overriding Automatic Date and Time Configuration

Typically, the 2Wire Gateway sets the date and time automatically using time servers on the Internet. You can override these settings and manually set them.

To manually change the date and time settings:

- 1. Open a Web browser and enter *http://home, http://gateway.2Wire.net, or http://192.168.1.254* to access the gateway user interface; the *Home* page opens.
- 2. Click Settings; the Settings page opens displaying the system information.

SWISE.

Home	Settings	Site Map				
System I	nfo Broadb	and LAN	Firewall	Diagnostics		
Status	Password Da	te & Time				
System	i informatio	1				
Manufa	cturer:	2Wire				
Model:		4011G-001				
Serial I	Number:	28091 A00008	33			I
Hardwa	re Version:	2700-000780	-001			I
Softwar	re Version:	9.1.1.12				I
Key Co	de:	52AD-2AD4-6	5266-22NA-B2	27 M		I
First U	se Date:	Fri Nov 20 05	:30:31 UTC 20	009		I
Curren	t Date & Time	: 12-22-20098	\$01:38:14			I
Time Si	ince Last Boot	: 3:53				I
DSL Mo	dem	A2pB025f6.d2	2			
System	Password:	Custom: *****	¢			II.

3. Click Date & Time; a page similar to the following opens.

Home Set	tings Si	te Map					
System Info	Broadband	I LAN	Firewall	Diagnostics			
Status Pass	word Date &	Time					
Current Tin	ne Settings						
Time Zone:	(GMT-08:00)	Pacific Time - U	S and Canada; Ti	Ijuana 🛛 💟			
Date:	Friday Ser	tember 04	2000				
		cember 04,	2009				
Time:	04:03:40 A	M	2009				
Time: Time Config Manual Con	04:03:40 A guration figuration:	M Dver	2009 rride automa	atic time configurati	on		
Time: Time Config Manual Con Set Time:	04:03:40 A guration figuration:	M	rride automa	atic time configurati (hh:mm:ss)	on		
Time: Time Config Manual Con Set Time: Set Date:	04:03:40 A guration figuration:	0ver	rride automa	atic time configurati _(hh:mm:ss) (yyyy/mm/dd)	on	 	
Time: Time Config Manual Con Set Time: Set Date: Daylight Say	04:03:40 A guration figuration: vings Time:	□ Over □ : □ 2 Auto	rride automa	atic time configurati (hh:mm:ss) (yyyy/mm/dd) djust for daylight sa	on vings		
Time: Time Config Manual Con Set Time: Set Date: Daylight Sav Time Serve	04:03:40 A guration figuration: vings Time: rS	Over □ Over □ : □	rride automa	atic time configurati (hh:mm:ss) (vyyy/mm/dd) djust for daylight sa	on vings		
Time: Time Config Manual Con Set Time: Set Date: Daylight Sav Time Serve Primary Tim	04:03:40 A guration figuration: wings Time: rs the Server	M Over Cover	rride automa : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : :	atic time configurati (hh:mm:ss) (yyyy/mm/dd) djust for daylight sa	on vings		
Time: Time Config Manual Con Set Time: Set Date: Daylight Sav Time Serve Primary Tim Secondary T	04:03:40 A guration figuration: vings Time: rs ee Server Time Server	M Over Cover	rride automa 	atic time configurati (hh:mm:ss) (yyyy/mm/dd) djust for daylight sa	on vings		

- 4. Select Manual Configuration to override the automatic time configuration.
- 5. Enter the desired time and date information in the Set Time and Set Date fields.
- 6. Select **Daylight Savings Time** to enable the automatic daylight saving time adjustment, if applicable.
- 7. Click Save.

This page is intentionally left blank.

CHAPTER 4 Configuring the Wireless Network

When the gateway is properly installed, the wireless network is functional. Your gateway is preconfigured with settings that optimize Wi-Fi performance. It is recommended that you leave the default settings in place.

If you are knowledgeable with the wireless technology and want to modify these settings, this section provides instructions to perform the following advanced configurations:

- Setting up your Wireless Network on page 26
- Securing your Wireless Network on page 28
- Customize Private Wireless Settings on page 31

Setting up your Wireless Network

If you are in a densely populated area, or if you regularly connect to more than one wireless network (such as one at work and one at home), it is good practice to give your wireless network a unique name, which makes it easy to identify when you select the wireless network to which to connect. The default wireless network name is 2WIREXXX, where XXX represents the last three digits of the serial number on the gateway (for example, 2WIRE954).

1. Open a Web browser and enter *http://home, http://gateway.2Wire.net, or http://192.168.1.254* to access the gateway user interface; the *Home* page opens.

2WJ	2 5'					
Home	Settings	Site Map				
Summa Mome Top Ne Wi Ret br	ary Broadband 9085 kbps \$508 kbps S08 kbps Network Dev andran <u>Device D</u> etworking Featron reless - modify s fresh your Broad oadband connect start your System	d Wire Networ INFINI rices etails atures ecurity or settin <u>band Connection</u> tion <u>n</u> - reboot	Iless Wrk Name: TUM0002	Firewall Status: Enabled		4011G-001 Gateway Serial Number: 28091 A000002
Home Networking - find a computer, share a file						
• <u>Sv:</u> • <u>Int</u> att • <u>Ga</u> set	 <u>System Password</u> - secure your system with a password <u>Internet security</u> - monitor attempted and blocked attacks <u>Gaming and Communications</u> - modify your firewall settings 					

2. Click r; the Wireless Interface page opens.

ewire:

Home	Settings	Site Map		
System I	nfo Broadb	and LAN	Firewall	Diagnostics
Status	Wireless Wireless	red Interfaces I	DHCP	
	Warning Modifying the settings on this page can impact the ability of devices to access your wireless network.			
Wirele:	Wireless Interface			
Enable	Enable Wireless Interface: V Default: Enabled			
Netwo	rk			
Networ	k Name (SSID): INFIN	ITUM0099]
SSID Br	oadcast:	✓		
Wireles	s Channel Mo	ode: auto	*	Current: 1
Wireles	s Channel Va	lue: Chanr	iel 1 💌	

3. Enter a name assigned to your wireless network in the Network Name (SSID) field.

This name appears next to \uparrow on the *Home* page.

- 4. Enable or disable the broadcast of the SSID over the wireless network by selecting or deselecting the check box.
 - Enabled is the default setting, which means that your SSID is visible to anyone who is scanning for a network to which to connect.
 - Disabled secures your wireless network by not announcing its presence. Deselect the Enable check box to disable it.
 - **Note** If you add a PC or device later, the wireless client will be unable to scan and connect to your wireless network when the SSID broadcast is disabled. You will need to manually add a wireless profile in the client device to connect to the wireless network instead of selecting the SSID name from a typical scan list.
- 5. Select the channel mode (radio frequency band) that the access point (AP) uses for your wireless network.

Note It is best to select *Auto* because a channel is automatically selected to minimize interference.

- **6.** Select a channel value from its drop-down list if you selected a channel mode other than Auto in 5.
- 7. Click Save.

Securing your Wireless Network

In addition to using the encryption key to secure your wireless network, you can also use the MAC address filtering feature to enhance the overall security solution provided by WPA/WEP.

Wireless security is enabled by default. Do not disable the security authentication and security features; they protect your private data transmission over the wireless link. Doing so may compromise the security of your PCs or other devices and lead to theft of service or loss of bandwidth.

Using the Encryption Key

It is good practice to customize an encryption key for wireless communication. When it is defined, each wireless client needs to have that encryption key to connect to your wireless network.

- 1. Open a Web browser and enter *http://home, http://gateway.2Wire.net, or http://192.168.1.254* to access the gateway user interface.
- 2. Click on the Home page; the Wireless Interface page opens.
- 3. Scroll down to the Security pane.

Security	
Wireless Security: Security Mode Encryption Key	WEP WEP Use default encryption key
	Location of SSID and Will Key on the bottom label
	Serial Number
OSet custom encryp	tion key:

4. Select an authentication setting from the Security Mode drop-down list:

Note Check the capabilities of the wireless clients that will be accessing this network and find the most secure protocol that is supported by all.

- *wep.* The Wireless Encryption Protocol (WEP) is an older security protocol that allows any wireless clients within the radio range to access your network without an encryption key. This setting provides the least level of security. For security reasons, do not select this setting unless there is compatibility issue with an older wireless client. For added protection, set an encryption key on your AP and enter the same key into your other wireless clients.
- wpaPsk. This default setting provides good security and works with most wireless clients but perhaps not on some older clients. This setting requires that an encryption key to be set on the AP and that the wireless client be configured to use Wi-Fi Protected Access – Pre-Shared Key (WPA-PSK) with the same encryption key.
- wpa2Psk. This setting requires that wireless clients use only WPA2-PSK to access your networks. An encryption key must be configured on the AP and entered into the wireless client. WPA2-PSK is currently the most secure Wi-Fi encryption protocol but may not be available on many wireless clients.
- wpaPskMixed. This setting allows a wireless client to use either WPA-PSK or WPA2-PSK to access your network. An encryption key must be configured on the AP and the same key must be entered on the wireless client.
- 5. Select the radio button next to **Use default encryption key** field and use the WEP Key for wireless authentication.
- 6. Select the radio button next to the **Set custom encryption key** field to manually configure the encryption key. Enter your encryption key consisting a minimum of 8 characters.
 - **Note** This pass phrase is applicable only for the WpaPsk and Wpa2Psk security modes.
- 7. Click Save.

Using the MAC Address Filtering

The MAC address is a factory-programmed address assigned to each hardware device. The MAC address filtering feature enables you to block or allow wireless connection to all devices or an individual device. It is most often used to allow only "known and trusted" devices to associate to the AP. By default, the MAC address filtering is disabled, meaning that all discovered devices are allowed. When enabled, the wireless connection is only available to the devices having their MAC addresses added to the allowed list.

Note Security is not optimized if you use only *MAC address filtering* option. It should be used in combination with the wireless security protocols to enhance the overall security solution.

To enable the MAC filter to block all devices:

- 1. Open a Web browser and enter *http://home, http://gateway.2Wire.net, or http://192.168.1.254* to access the gateway user interface.
- 2. Click on the Home page; the Wireless Interface page opens.

3. Scroll down to the MAC Filtering pane.

MAC Filtering	
MAC Filtering	Edit Blocked/Allowed Device List

4. Click Edit Blocked/Allowed Device List; the Wireless MAC Filtering page opens.

2Wire

Home	Settings	Site Map			
System I	nfo Broadb	and LAN Firewall Diagnostics			
Status	Status Wireless Wired Interfaces DHCP				
Wirele:	Wireless MAC Filtering				
Enable	Enable MAC Filtering				
Authen	tication Type	blacklist 💌			
			Save		
MAC Address List					
Add New MAC Address to List Manually					
Enter MAC address Add To List					
			Back		

- 5. Enter the MAC address you want to block in the Enter MAC address field.
- 6. Click Add to List.
- 7. Select the Enable check box to block all devices.
- 8. Select the Authentication Type: blacklist (default), whitelist.
 - *blacklist* is the default setting that blocks all devices.
 - whitelist is a setting that allows access to all devices.
- 9. Click **Save**; a dialog box opens confirming that the configuration is changed.

Customize Private Wireless Settings

The *Advanced Settings* pane allows you to customize wireless settings. It is recommended that you leave the default settings in place; however, if you are experiencing connection or performance difficulties, altering these settings may improve performance.

- 1. Open a Web browser and enter *http://home, http://gateway.2Wire.net, or http://192.168.1.254* to access the gateway user interface.
- 2. Click not the Home page; the Wireless Interface page opens.
- 3. Scroll down to the Advanced Settings pane.

Advanced Settings	
Power Setting:	4 💌
Wireless Mode:	802.11bg 💌
DTIM Period:	1
Maximum Connection Rate:	auto 💌
	Save

- 1. Select a power setting from its associated drop-down list.
- 2. Select a wireless mode from its associated drop-down list.
- Enter a value in the range from 1 to 3 seconds in the DTIM Period field. (The default is 1.) This Delivery Traffic Indication Message (DTIM) value determines the interval at which the access point sends its broadcast traffic.
- **4.** Select the maximum rate at which your wireless connection works: auto or 6, 9, 18, 24, 36, 48, and 54 Mbps.
- 5. Click Save.

This page is intentionally left blank.
CHAPTER 5 Configuring Firewall Settings

The gateway includes default firewall settings that block unwanted access from the Internet; it is recommended that you leave the default settings in place. If necessary, you can allow Internet traffic or users through the firewall to your LAN devices, applications, and servers. This section provides instructions to:

- Hosting Applications on page 33
- Removing Hosted Applications on page 35
- Defining New Application Profiles on page 37
- Deleting Application Profiles on page 41

Hosting Applications

To allow access from the Internet to applications running on computers inside your home network, you need to open firewall pinholes and associate the intended application(s) with a computer connected with your gateway. If you cannot find a listing for your application, you can define an application profile that includes the protocol and port information (refer to Defining New Application Profiles on page 37).

To host applications:

- 1. Open a Web browser and enter *http://home, http://gateway.2Wire.net, or http://192.168.1.254* to access the gateway user interface.
- 2. Click 🐖 on the Home page; the Firewall Status page opens.



3. Select Applications and Pinholes; a page similar to the following opens.

2Wire

Home	Settings	Site Map					
System I	nfo Broadb	and LAN	Firewall	Diagnostic	2		
Status	Applications a	and Pinholes					
Allow	device appli	cation traffi	c to pass tl	nrough firev	vall		
By defaul Internet pinholes To do th your app To allow	By default, the firewall blocks all unwanted access from the Internet. You can allow access from the Internet to applications running on computers inside your secure home network by enabling firewall pinholes. Opening firewall pinholes is also known as opening firewall ports or firewall port forwarding. To do this, associate the desired application with the computer below. If you cannot find a listing for your application, you can create a user-defined application with the protocol and port information. To allow Internet traffic or users through the Firewall to your LAN devices, applications and servers:						
Select	a computer						
Choose t ++ You	he computer than have chosen gcl	at will host app nandran Choose	lications thro	ugh the firewal	I		
Edit fir	ewall setting	gs for this oc	mputer:				
Filte	er Application	ıs by	Applicati	on List		Hosted Application	
• AI • <u>Gr</u> • <u>At</u> • <u>Mr</u> • <u>Se</u> • <u>O1</u> • <u>Us</u>	l Applications ames idio/Video essaging and Int ione rvers ther ther ther per Defined	Age : Age : Aje : Aje : Aje : Aje : Anar Ashe Bald Bath Bath Bath Blaol	of Empires of Kings of Wonders is vis Predator ohy Online ron's Call ur's Gate eCom eCom cand White	cator	Add Remove	<	
		appli	<u>cation</u>				

4. Select the computer that you want to host the application(s).

Note If the computer you want to select is unlisted because it is powered off, you still can select it as long as it is on the same network and you know its IP address. Enter the intended IP address, then click **Choose**.

- 5. Filter the application list by selecting the category; your selection is displayed in the *Application List* panel.
- 6. Select from the Application List panel the application(s) you want to host.

- **Note** To select multiple applications, hold down the [Shift] or [Ctrl] keys while making your selections. Using the [Shift] key lets you make your selections in a contiguous order while the [Ctrl] key selects the groups in a random order.
- 7. Click Add; the application(s) you selected appears in the Hosted Applications panel.

Removing Hosted Applications

- 1. Open a Web browser and enter *http://home, http://gateway.2Wire.net, or http://192.168.1.254* to access the gateway user interface.
- 2. Click on the *Home* page; the *Firewall Status* page opens, displaying the current hosted application settings.

Home	Settings	Sitel	Map			
System Ir	ifo Broadb	and	LAN Firewa	all Diagno	stics	
Status	Applications	and Pinh	oles			
Firewal	l Status					
Firewal The firewa Current	l Status III actively bloc Settings: en	ks acces: able 💌	: of unwanted a	ctivity from the	Internet.	
Firewal The firewa Current Device I	l Status III actively bloc Settings: en Name Devic	ks access nable 💌 e IP 🗛	: of unwanted a Ilowed Applic	ctivity from the	Internet. col Port Number	r(s)
Firewal The firewa Current Device I gchandra	l Status III actively bloc Settings: en Name Devic In 192.168	ks access able 💌 e IP A .1.131 A	: of unwanted a Ilowed Applic ge of Empires	ctivity from the cations Proto tcp	Internet. col Port Number 47624-47624	r (s)

3. Select Applications and Pinholes; a page opens showing the current hosted applications.

Home	Settings	Site Map								
System I	nfo Broadb	and LAN	Firewall	Diagnosti	c s					
Status Allow o	Status Applications and Pinholes Allow device application traffic to pass through firewall									
By defaul Internet pinholes To do thi your app To allow	By default, the firewall blocks all unwanted access from the Internet. You can allow access from the Internet to applications running on computers inside your secure home network by enabling firewall pinholes. Opening firewall pinholes is also known as opening firewall ports or firewall port forwarding. To do this, associate the desired application with the computer below. If you cannot find a listing for your application, you can create a user-defined application with the protocol and port information. To allow Internet traffic or users through the Firewall to your LAN devices, applications and servers:									
Select	a computer									
Choose t + You Edit fir	he computer than have chosen gch	at will host appli handran Choose gs for this co	ications thro mputer:	ugh the firewa						
Filte	r Application	is by	Applicatio	n List		Hosted Application				
 All Applications Games Age of Kings Age of Wonders Audio/Video Aliens vs Predator Anarohy Online Asheron's Call Baldur's Gate Battle Com Battlefield Communicator Black and White Dark Reign User Defined 										
		<u>Add a</u> applica	new user-de ation	fined						

- 4. Select the application(s) you want to remove from the *Hosted Applications* panel, click **Remove**.
 - **Note** To select multiple applications, hold down the [Shift] or [Ctrl] keys while making your selections. Using the [Shift] key lets you make your selections in a contiguous order while the [Ctrl] key selects the groups in a random order.
- 5. Click **Save**; a message appears informing you of the status. The application(s) you selected is removed from the *Hosted Applications* panel and returned to the *Application List* panel.

Defining New Application Profiles

An application profile includes protocol and port information that allow your system's firewall to pass through application-specific data. You can define an application profile that is not included in the Application List. This feature is typically used if the application for which you would like to pass through data to a given computer is new or has been recently updated to a new version.

To define a new application profile:

- 1. Open a Web browser and enter *http://home, http://gateway.2Wire.net, or http://192.168.1.254* to access the gateway user interface.
- 2. Click *m* on the *Home* page; the *Firewall* Status page opens.

Home	Settings	Site Map			
System I	nfo Broadb	and LAN	Firewall	Diagnostics	
Status	Applications	and Pinholes			
Firewa	ll Status				
The firew	vall actively bloc	ks access of unw	anted activit	y from the Internet.	
Curren	t Settings: en	able 🔽			
					Save
Device	Name Device	IP Allowed App	plications	Protocol Port Number(s)	
		No Port forwar	d Rule Availa	ble	

3. Select Applications and Pinholes; a page similar to the following opens.

Home	Settings	Site Map						
System I	nfo Broadb	and LAN	Firewall	Diagnostics	;			
Status	Applications a	and Pinholes						
Allow	device applie	cation traffic	e to pass ti	hrough firew	rall			
By defaul Internet pinholes To do th your app To allow	By default, the firewall blocks all unwanted access from the Internet. You can allow access from the Internet to applications running on computers inside your secure home network by enabling firewall pinholes. Opening firewall pinholes is also known as opening firewall ports or firewall port forwarding. To do this, associate the desired application with the computer below. If you cannot find a listing for your application, you can create a user-defined application with the protocol and port information. To allow Internet traffic or users through the Firewall to your LAN devices, applications and servers:							
Select	a computer			,				
++ You	have chosen gch	nandran Choose 15 for this co	mputer:	ugn the firewall				
Filte	er Applicatior	ıs by	Applicati	on List		Hosted Application		
• Al <u>Gi</u> <u>Au</u> <u>Pr</u> <u>Se</u> 01	I Applications ames Idio/Video essaging and Int tone rivers ther ther ter Defined	Age o Age o Age o Aliens Anaro Asher Baldu Battle Black Add a	f Empires f Kings f Wonders s vs Predator shy Online ron's Call r's Gate Com field Communi and White new user-de	cator	Add Remove			
		applic	ation	_				

4. Click Add a new user-defined application; the *Firewall Application Profile Definition* page opens.

SMISE.

Home	Settings	Site Map		
System	Info Broadb	and LAN	Firewall	Diagnostics
Status	s Applications a	and Pinholes		
			a	
Firewa	ill Applicatic	on Profile D	efinition	
lf the des multiple	sired application definitions. Cur	ı requires mult rent definition	iple ports of I s for this prof	ooth TCP and UDP ports, you will need to add île are shown in the Definition List below.
Applica	ation Profile I	lame:		
Create	Application D	efinition		
Pr	otocol:		TCP 💿 UDP	0
Po	rt (or Range):		From:	To:
Ma	ap to Host Port:		D	efault/blank = same port as above
Ap	plication Type:		-	▼
			Note: In son	ne rare instances, certain application types
			forwarding.	If the application you are adding appears in the
			application t select it.	type menu above, it is recommended that you
				Add To List
Definit	ion List			1
Descri	ption Protoco	l Port (or Ra	nge) Host P	ort
				Back

5. Enter the application profile name in the Application Profile Name field.

Note For easy identification, use the name of the application (for example, Redwing Game Server).

- 6. Create a definition for your application that is to be allowed through the firewall.
 - In the Protocol field, select the TCP or UDP radio button. If the application you are adding requires both, you need to create a separate definition for each.
 - In the Port (or Range) field, enter the port or port range the application uses. For example, some applications require only one port to be opened (such as TCP port 500); others require that all TCP ports from 600 to 1000 be opened.

Note If only one port is required, enter the port number in the **From** field.

• In the **Map to Host Port** field, enter a value that maps the port range you established in the **Port** field to the local computer. For example, if you set the value to 4000 and the port range being opened is 100 to 108, the forwarded data to the first value in the

range will be sent to 4000. Subsequent ports will be mapped accordingly; 101 will be sent to 4001, 102 will be sent to 4002, and so forth.

- From the **Application Type** drop-down list, select the application type. If you do not know the application type, select nothing.
 - **Note** You can find the above information in the documentation provided by the company that produces the application.
- 7. Click Add To List; a Configuration Successful message appears on the following page indicating that the profile is created.

Deleting Application Profiles

- 1. Open a Web browser and enter *http://home, http://gateway.2Wire.net, or http://192.168.1.254* to access the gateway user interface.
- 2. Click p on the Home page; the Firewall Status page opens.

SWISE.

Home	Settings	Site Map			
System I	nfo Broadt	oand LAN	Firewall	Diagnostics	
		and Dischalas			
Status	Applications	and rinnoles			
Firewa	ll Status				
The firew	vall actively bloc	ks access of unw	anted activity	from the Internet.	
Curren	t Settings: er	able 💌			
					Save
Device	Name Device	IP Allowed Ap	plications P	rotocol Port Number(s)	
		No Port forwar	d Rule Availab	le	

3. Select Applications and Pinholes; a page similar to the following opens.

Home	Settings	Site Map						
System I	nfo Broadb	and LAN	Firewall Diagn	ostics				
Status	Applications	and Pinholes						
Allow	Allow device application traffic to pass through firewall							
By defaul Internet pinholes To do thi your app To allow	By default, the firewall blocks all unwanted access from the Internet. You can allow access from the Internet to applications running on computers inside your secure home network by enabling firewall pinholes. Opening firewall pinholes is also known as opening firewall ports or firewall port forwarding. To do this, associate the desired application with the computer below. If you cannot find a listing for your application, you can create a user-defined application with the protocol and port information. To allow Internet traffic or users through the Firewall to your LAN devices, applications and servers:							
Select a	a computer							
Choose t + You Edit fir	he computer th have chosen gcl	at will host appli handran Choose gs for this co:	cations through the f nputer:	irewall				
Filte	er Application	ns by	Application List		Hosted Application			
• AI • <u>Ga</u> • <u>Au</u> • <u>Mi</u> • <u>Ph</u> • <u>Se</u> • <u>O1</u> • Us	I Applications I <u>mes</u> Idio/Video essaging and Inf one rvers <u>her</u> er Defined	Age o Age o Age o Aliens Anaro Asher Baidlu Battle Battle Battle Battle Battle Battle Battle Battle Battle	Empires Kings Wonders vs Predator yv Online on's Call 's Gate Com ield Communicator and White	Add Remove				
		applic	ation					

4. Click Add a new user-defined application; the *Firewall Application Profile Definition* page opens.

2Wire

Home	Settings	Site Map		
System I	nfo Broadt	and LAN	Firewall	Diagnostics
Status	Applications	and Pinholes		
Firewa	ll Applicatio	on Profile De	finition	
If the des	ired application	1 requires multi	ple ports of l	both TCP and UDP ports, you will need to add
multiple	definitions, cur	rent demnitions	for this prof	me are shown in the Dennition List below.
Applica	ation Profile	Name:		
Create	Application I	Definition	~	
Pr	otocol:		TCP 💽 UDP	• <u>•</u>
Po	rt (or Range):		From:	To:
Ma	ap to Host Port:			Default/blank = same port as above
Ap	plication Type:		-	×
			Note: In son	ne rare instances, certain application types
			forwarding.	If the application you are adding appears in the
			application select it.	type menu above, it is recommended that you
				Add To List
Definiti	ion List			
Descri	ption Protoco	l Port (or Rai	1ge) Host P	fort
chat	udp	500	500	Remove Rule
				Back

5. Select the profile you want to delete, click **Remove Rule**.

Note Be sure to select the intended application. Once you click **Remove Rule**, the profile is deleted.

This page is intentionally left blank.

CHAPTER 6 Configuring LAN Devices

Typically, your Internet service provider automatically assigns and configures a dynamic IP address when your system connects to the Internet. Business or power users may use a static address enabling them to run advanced services such as Internet servers and video conferences. The availability of static IP addresses is usually an additional service offered by service providers. In addition, changes from the default behavior of the gateway for private IP addressing may also be used by some users.

Note Configure these settings *only* if you are familiar with computer networking technologies.

This section provides instructions to:

- Adding New Static Routes on page 46
- Configuring DHCP on page 47
- Allocating an Address Pool for All Devices on page 52
- Disabling Ethernet Interfaces on page 56

Adding New Static Routes

You can create a local network that has broadband network-accessible IP addresses by creating a route from the Internet to the specified public network. This feature is typically used in conjunction with broadband service that provides a range of available IP addresses.

- **Note** Add the static routes first if you want to use the public address with your DHCP configuration.
 - 1. Open a Web browser and enter *http://home, http://gateway.2Wire.net, or http://192.168.1.254* to access the gateway user interface.
 - 2. Click O on the Home page; the Broadband Status page opens.

]	Home	Settings	Sit	e Map]	
_	System I	nfo Broadt	oand	LAN	Firewall	Diagnostics
	Status	Link Configur	ation	Routing	DNS Resolut	ion
	Summa	ary Status				
	Interne	et: • Conne	cted			
	DSL Lir	nk: • Conne	cted			
	Intern	et Details				
	Broadb	and Link Type	e:	Built in m	iodem - ADSL	
	Соппес	tion Type:		dhcp		
	IP	Address:		172.16.6	.89	
	Su	bnet Mask:		255.255.	248.0	
	De	fault Gateway:		172.16.0	.1	
	Pr	imary DNS:		202.54.2	9.5	
	Se	condary DNS:		202.54.10	0.2	
	Но	st Name:		home		
	Do	main:		gateway.2	wire.net	
	M	AC Address:		00:25:3c:	91:35:40	
	M	TU:		1500		

3. Click Routing; the following page opens.

2Wire

Home	Settings	Site Map		
System I	nfo Broadl	band LAN	Firewall	Diagnostics
Statu	s Link Configur	ration <u>Routing</u>	DNS Resolu	tion
Static I	Routes			
Add Ne Su Su Ga	w Route bnet IP: [bnet Mask: [teway IP: [
Static I	Route List: t IP Submet M	Add To List	IP	
192.168	.1.0 255.255.2	55.0 0.0.0.0		
192.168	0.1.0 255.255.2	55.0 192.168.1.	254	

- 4. Enter information in the following fields:
 - In the Subnet IP field, enter the router address (this is the router address from the secondary subnet provided by the service provider).
 - In the **Subnet Mask** field, enter the subnet mask (this is the router mask from the secondary subnet provided by the service provider).
 - In the Gateway IP field, enter the IP address of the router for the specified subnet.
- 5. Click Add to List.

Configuring DHCP

Dynamic Host Configuration Protocol (DHCP) allows for dynamic allocation of network addresses and configuration to newly attached hosts. The gateway can be both a DHCP client and DHCP server. The gateway acts as a client when it communicates to your service provider over the Internet using DHCP. For this communication, you cannot modify the related DHCP settings. The gateway is a DHCP server to your local network devices such as the computers connecting to it.

Note If you change the local network IP address range, you must renew the DHCP lease on all devices on the gateway's local network and manually reconfigure all devices configured with static IP addresses.

To configure the default DHCP information used as a local server:

1. Open a Web browser and enter *http://home, http://gateway.2Wire.net, or http://192.168.1.254* in the address line; the *Home* page opens.

Home Settings Site Map Summary Summary Site Map Image: Status Image: Statu	2wir	E.					
Summary Image: Status and Status	Home	Settings	Site Map				
Summary Image: Solution of the security security security of the security security security of the security security security of the security security security of the security security security security of the security security security security of the security							
attacks • <u>Gaming and Communications</u> - modify your firewall settings	Summar Summar Home Ne gehan Top Netv • Wirel • Refre broav • Resta • Home • Syste • Inter	y Broadbance 9085 kbps \$08 kbps etwork Dev dran <u>Device D</u> working Fea working Fea less - modify s sh your Broad dband Connect int your System a Networking - net security -	A Wire Netwo INFINI ices etails atures ecurity or settin band Connection ion 0 - reboot find a compute secure your sys monitor attemp	less irk Name: TUM0002 gs 1 - reconnect r, share a file tem with a pu	t your	Firewall Status: Enabled	4011G-001 Gateway Serial Number: 28091A000002
	attac • <u>Gami</u> settir	ks ing and Commi ngs	unications - mo	dify your fire	wall		

2. Click Settings; the System Information page opens.

2WIRE

Home	Settings	Site Map]					
System I	Info Broadt	and LAN	Firewall	Diagnostics				
Status Password Date & Time								
System	n Informatio	n						
Manufa	cturer:	2Wire						
Model:		4011G-001	4011G-001					
Serial I	Number:	28091 A00008	28091 A000083					
Hardwa	re Version:	2700-000780	0-001					
Softwar	re Version:	9.1.1.12						
Key Co	de:	52AD-2AD4-6	5266-22NA-B2	7 M				
First U	se Date:	Fri Nov 20 05	3:30:31 UTC 20	0.9				
Curren	t Date & Time	: 12-22-2009	& 01:38:14					
Time Si	ince Last Boot	t: 3:53						
DSL Mo	dem	A2pB025f6.d2	A2pB025f6.d22					
System	Password:	Custom: *****	Custom: *****					

3. Click LAN; a page similar to the following opens, displaying the private network information and LAN devices connected to your network.

2Wire:

Home S	ettings	Site M	lap						
System Info	Broadba	and L	AN F	irewall Dia	agno:	stics			
					_				
Status W	'ireless Wir	ed Interfa	ces DHO	CP					
Private Network									
Router/Ga	teway Addi	ress:	192.1	68.1.254					
Subnet Ma	sk:		255.2	255.255.0					
Private Ne	twork DHC	P Info:							
Range			192.1	68.1.64 - 192	.168.	1.253			
Timeo	ut		8640	O seconds					
T									
Interfaces	3								
Interface	Status								
-,≄Ethernet	Enabled								
🐶 Wireless	Enabled								
T.T' 1									
Wireless									
Wireless C	hannel:	1							
Wireless P	ower Level	: 0 dł	Bm						
SSID Name	-	INF	INITUMO	099					
Status	:	Up							
SSID B	roadcast:	ena	ble						
Securi	.y.	wep	,						
Devices									
Unknown 00	2evice	2-52 AL	Ftherne	MAC Addre	225	1921601106	Device Details		
Unknown_00	1 2 22 09 0	10-00 T	Etherne	+ 00.20.40.76.a	10.00	192.100.1.100	Device Details		
Onknown_oc	-11-23-03-0	JI-40 T	Linerne	. 00.11.23.03.0	71.40	152.100.1.131	Device Details		
Traffic Sta	tistics								
	-		_						
Interfac	e Bytes	Packets	Errors						
Port 1 Trans	mit 822334	1383	0						
Port 1 Recei	ve 218367	2003	0						
	Wireles	5							
Transmit	0	0	262						
Receive	0	0	0						

4. Click DHCP; the DHCP Configuration page opens.

Home Settings	Site Map									
System Info Broadba	nd LAN Firewall Diagnostics									
Status wireless wired interfaces DHCP										
Warning Modifying the settings on this page can impact the ability of devices to access your private network.										
DHCP Configuration										
DHCP Server Enabled Unchecking will stop the DHCP server from assigning IP addresses to LAN DHCP clients.										
DHCP Network Range	If you change the IP address range, you must renew the DHCP lease for all devices on the network.									
	O 192.168.1.0 / 255.255.255.0 (default)									
	0 172.16.0.0 / 255.255.0.0									
	O 10.0.0.0 / 255.0.0.0									
	Onfigure manually									
	Router Address: 192.168.1.254									
	Subnet Mask: 255.255.0									
	First DHCP Address: 192.168.1.64									
	Last DHCP Address: 192.168.1.253									
DHCP Lease Time:	24 hours									
Select Default Addre	ss Allocation Pool for the DHCP Server									
Warning: This selection modifies the default LAN network used by the DHCP server for address assignments to new devices. The default setting is Private Network. Change it only to Public Network when you want every new device getting a public address assigned. The recommendation is Private Network. You can change the setting for each individual on the 'IP Address Allocation' page.										
New Device DHCP Poo	: Private Network 💌									
	Save									

- 5. Select Configure manually if you want to set up a range for the DHCP address IP pool.
- 6. Enter information in the following fields:
 - In the **Router Address** field, enter the IP address of your gateway used for all communication on your local devices.
 - In the Subnet Mask field, enter the subnet mask used for all communication on your local devices (the default is 255.255.255.0).
 - In the First DHCP Address field, enter the first IP address in the DHCP address pool that you will be distributing over the private network.
 - In the Last DHCP Address field, enter the last IP address in the DHCP address pool that you will be distributing over the private network.

- 7. Enter a numerical value in the DHCP Lease Time field that represents the number of hours you can use the assigned IP address before the DHCP lease expires. Select a public IP address pool that is assigned via DHCP on the local area network.
- 8. Select Private Network from the New Device DHCP Pool drop-down list.
- 9. Click Save.

Allocating an Address Pool for All Devices

The default DHCP server address allocation pool is set to Private Network. You can change it to Public Network when you want all devices to have the same addresses assigned. To change the address setting for individual devices, refer to Allocating an Address Pool for All Devices on page 52.

To change the default address allocation pool:

1. Open a Web browser and enter *http://home, http://gateway.2Wire.net, or http://192.168.1.254* in the address line; the *Home* page opens.



2. Click Settings; the System Information page opens.

SWISE.

Home	Set	tings	Site	Map					
System	System Info Broadba			LAN	Firewall	Dia	iagnostics		
Statu	s Pass	sword Da	te & Tii	me					
Syster	n Info	ormatio	n						
Manuf			0.020						
Manuta	acture	r:	2011	e C 001					
model.			4011						
Serial	Numb	er:	2809	TAUUUUS	33				
Hardw	are Ve	ersion:	2700	-000780	-001				
Softwa	re Vei	rsion:	9.1.1	.12					
Key Co	de:		52AD	-2AD4-6	5266-22NA-8	27M	м		
First U	lse Da	te:	Fri N	ov 20 05	:30:31 UTC 2	2009	9		
Curren	Current Date & Time:			2-2009 8	\$01:38:14				
Time S	Time Since Last Boot:								
DSL M	DSL Modem			A2pB025f6.d22					
System	word:	Cust	Custom: *****						

3. Click LAN; a page similar to the following opens, displaying the private network information and LAN devices connected to your network.

Home	Setti	ings	Site	Map				
System I	nfo l	Broadba	nd	LAN	Firewall	Diagno	stics	
				_				
Status	Wirele	ess Wire	ed Inter	faces D	НСР			
Drimate	Notw	ork						
FIIVALE	anetw	OFK						
Router	/Gate w	ay Addr	ess:	192	2.168.1.254			
Subnet	Mask:		D lafo.	255	.255.255.0			
rrivate Ra	nerwo	rk Dhu	r Inio:	192	168164-	192168	1 253	
Tir	neout			864	00 second	5		
Interfa	ces							
Interfa	ce Sta	tus						
🚑 Ether	net Ena	bled						
💎 Wirel	ess Ena	bled						
Wireles	5S							
Wireles	s Chan	nel:	1					
Wireles	s Powe	r Level	: 0	dBm				
SSID Na	me:		11	IFINITUM	0099			
Sta	itus:		U	Р				
SSI	D Broad	cast:	e	nable				
Sei	curity:		w	ep				
Device	s							
201100	-							
United	Devi	ce	0.50.0	Interfac	e MACA	ddress	IP Address	Deviles Details
Unknown	1_00-e0	-4c-/6-a	3-53 -	Ftherr	et 00:e0:4c	.00.0640	192.168.1.106	Device Details
UNKNOW	1_00-1 6	-23-09-0)1-48 -	t. crueri	let 00:16:23	:09:01:48	192.168.1.131	Device Details
Traffic	Statist	tics						
1-0		Ducto -	Da e kar		-			
Inter	lace	Etherne	racker	17 511.01	2			
Port 1 T	ransmit	822334	1383	0				
Port 1 R	eceive	218367	2003	; O				
		Wireles	z					
Transmi	t	0	0	262				
Receive		0	0	0				

4. Click DHCP; the DHCP Configuration page opens.

SWISE.

Home Settings	Site Map								
System Info Broadba	nd LAN Firewall Diagnostics								
Status wireless wired interfaces DHCP									
Warning Modify private network.	Warning Modifying the settings on this page can impact the ability of devices to access your private network.								
DHCP Configuration									
DHCP Server Enabled Unchecking will stop the DHCP server from assigning IP addresses to LAN DHCP clients.									
DHCP Network Range	If you change the IP address range, you must renew the DHCP lease for all devices on the network.								
	O 192.168.1.0 / 255.255.255.0 (default)								
	0 172.16.0.0 / 255.255.0.0								
	0 10.0.0.0 / 255.0.0.0								
	Configure manually								
	Router Address: 192.168.1.254								
	Subnet Mask: 255.255.255.0								
	First DHCP Address: 192.168.1.64								
	Last DHCP Address: 192.168.1.253								
DHCP Lease Time:	24 hours								
Select Default Addre	Select Default Address Allocation Pool for the DHCP Server								
Warning: This selection modifies the default LAN network used by the DHCP server for address assignments to new devices. The default setting is Private Network. Change it only to Public Network when you want every new device getting a public address assigned. The recommendation is Private Network. You can change the setting for each individual on the 'IP Address Allocation' page.									
New Device DHCP Poo	Private Network 😢								
	Save								

- 5. Select Private Network from the New Device DHCP Pool drop-down list.
- 6. Click Save.

Disabling Ethernet Interfaces

Disabling Ethernet networking enhances security. When Ethernet networking is enabled, users can connect through Ethernet port without going through any authentication. If Ethernet port is disabled and default wireless settings are changed, then the user has to obtain the correct wireless authentication parameters from the local administrator. Thus, disabling Ethernet networking enhances physical security and is more suited for business environment such as kiosks, schools, and so on.

By default, the gateway is shipped with the Ethernet interface enabled. When disabled, you will be unable to access the Internet using the Ethernet port connection. Before you disable the Ethernet ports, make sure that the wireless connection is set up and working properly.

1. Open a Web browser and enter *http://home, http://gateway.2Wire.net, or http://192.168.1.254* in the address line; the *Home* page opens.

lome	Settings	Site Map						
Summ	ary Broadband	d 🕥 Wire	less 🛋	Firewall		4011G-001		
↓ 9085 kbps ↑ 508 kbps ↑ 508 kbps								
Home Network Devices								
Top Ne	andran <u>Device D</u> etworking Fe	atures						
• <u>Wi</u> • <u>Ret</u> br	<u>reless</u> - modify s fresh your Broac oadband connec	ecurity or settin Iband Connection tion	gs I - reconnect you	r				
 <u>Restart your System</u> - reboot <u>Home Networking</u> - find a computer, share a file 								
• <u>Sv</u> s • <u>Int</u> att	<u>stem Password</u> - <u>ernet security</u> - acks	secure your syst monitor attempt	ord					
• <u>Ga</u>	ming and Comm	<u>unications</u> - mod						

2. Click Settings; the System Information page opens.

SWISE.

Home	Set	tings	Site	Map					
System	System Info Broadba			LAN	Firewall	Diagnostics			
Status	Pass	word Da	te & Tir	ne					
System	n Info	rmatio	n						
Manufa	Manufacturer:			2					
Model:			4011	G-001					
Serial	Numb	er:	2809	28091A000083					
Hardwa	are Ve	rsion:	2700	-000780	-001				
Softwa	re Ver	sion:	9.1.1	.12					
Key Co	de:		52AD	-2AD4-6	266-22NA-B	B27M			
First U	se Dat	te:	Fri N	ov 20 05	:30:31 UTC 2	2009			
Curren	Current Date & Time:			2-2009 8	01:38:14				
Time S	Time Since Last Boot:								
DSL Mo	DSL Modem			D25f6.d2	2				
System	word:	Custo	Custom: *****						

3. Click LAN; a page similar to the following opens, displaying the private network information and LAN devices connected to your network.

Home	Setti	ings	Site	Map				
System I	Info I	Broadba	nd	LAN	Firewall	Diagno	stics	
Status	s Wirele	ess Wire	ed Inter	rfaces D	нср			
Private	e Netw	ork						
Router	/Gatew	ay Addı	ess:	192	.168.1.254			
Subnet	Mask:			255	.255.255.0			
Private	Netwo	rk DHC	P Info	:				
Ra	nge:			192	.168.1.64 -	192.168	1.253	
Tir	meout			864	00 second	z		
Interfa	ices							
Interfa	ace Sta	tus						
📲 Ether	rnet Ena	bled						
🙌 Wirel	less Ena	bled						
Wirele:	SS							
Wireles	cs Chan	mol-	1					
Wireles	ss Powe	r Level	. n) dBm				
SSID N	ame:			NFINITUM	0099			
Sta	atus:		U	lp				
SS	ID Broad	cast:	е	nable				
Se	curity:		W	vep				
Device	S							
	Devi	ce		Interfac	e MACA	ddress	IP Address	
Unknow	n_00-e0	-4c-76-a	3-53	🕂 Etherr	et 00:e0:4d	:76:a3:53	192.168.1.106	Device Details
Unknow	n_00-1c	-23-09-0)f-48	₩ Etherr	et 00:1c:23	09:0f:48	192.168.1.131	Device Details
Traffic	Statist	tics						
Inter	rface	Bytes	Packe	ts Error	z			
	1	Etherne	t					
Port 1 T	ransmit	822334	1383	3 0				
Port 1 R	eceive	218367	2003	3 0				
		Wireles	z					
Transmi	it	0	0	262				
Receive		0	0	0				

4. Click Wired Interfaces; a page similar to the following opens.

Home	Settings	Site Map								
System I	System Info Broadband LAN Firewall Diagnostics									
Status	s Wireless <u>Wi</u>	red Interfaces [DHCP							
Ethern	et Switch									
Ethern	et Networking	g 🗹 Enable								
					Save					

- 5. Deselect Enable to disable the Ethernet connection.
- 6. Click Save.

CHAPTER 6: Configuring LAN Devices

This page is intentionally left blank.

CHAPTER 7 Configuring the Broadband Connection

Typically your Broadband and Internet connection settings are automatically provided by your service provider. When the gateway is properly connected it automatically detects which DSL line to use; it does not require further configuration.

If the information was not automatically provided and you need to manually configure your Broadband and Internet connection settings, make sure to have the following ATM information and authentication settings from your service provider:

- Circuit identifier (VPI/VCI)
- Encapsulation method
- PPP username
- PPP password

Configuring DSL and ATM Settings

C Modifying the gateway broadband configuration settings may impede or interrupt your broadband service. Modify these settings only if you are familiar with networking technology.

All information you need to configure this setting is provided by your service provider.

- 1. Open a Web browser and enter *http://home, http://gateway.2Wire.net, or http://192.168.1.254* to access the gateway user interface.
- 2. Click 🔮 on the *Home* page; the *Summary Status* page opens.

Home	Settings	Site Ma	P	
System I	nfo Broadt	and LA	N Firewall	Diagnostics
Status	Link Configur	ation Rout	ing DNS Resol	ution
Summa	ary Status			
Interne	et: • Conne	cted		
DSL Lir	ik: • Conne	cted		
Intern	et Details			
Broadb	and Link Type	e: Built	in modern - ADS	5L
Connec	tion Type:	dhcp		
IP	Address:	172.1	6.6.89	
Su	bnet Mask:	255.2	55.248.0	
De	fault Gateway:	172.1	6.0.1	
Pr	imary DNS:	202.5	4.29.5	
Se	condary DNS:	202.5	4.10.2	
Но	st Name:	home		
Do	main:	gatew	ay.2wire.net	
MA	AC Address:	00:25	:3c:91:35:40	
M	TU:	1 500		

3. Click Link Configuration; a page similar to the following opens.



- 4. Enter the VPI and VCI you want the gateway to use in connecting to the ISP.
- 5. Select the encapsulation method from the ATM Encapsulation drop-down list.
 - For PPPoE or Bridging, select Bridged LLC or Bridged VC-Mux.
 - For PPPoA, select Routed LLC or Routed VC-Mux.
- Select the ATM/PVC Search check box to enable the PVC search. PVC search enables the device to automatically detect ISP's VPI/VCI values so that the end user need not enter VPI/VCI values.
- 7. Click Save.

Configuring the Connection Type

The connection type identifies the method by which the gateway connects to the ISP.

- 1. Open a Web browser and enter *http://home, http://gateway.2Wire.net, or http://192.168.1.254* to access the gateway user interface.
- 2. Click O on the Home page; the Summary Status page opens.

Home Settings Sit	e Map						
System Info Broadband	LAN Firewall	Diagnostics					
Status Link Configuration	Routing DNS Resolut	ion					
Summary Status							
Internet: • Connected							
DSL Link: • Connected							
Internet Details							
Broadband Link Type:	Built in modem - ADSL						
Connection Type:	dhcp						
IF Address:	172.16.6.89						
Default Cateway:	255.255.240.0						
Primary DNS:	202 54 29 5						
Secondary DNS:	202.54.10.2						
Host Name:	home						
Domain:	gateway.2wire.net						
MAC Address:	00:25:3c:91:35:40						
MTU:	1500						

- 3. Click Link Configuration; the Link Configuration page opens.
- 4. Scroll down to the *Connection Type* pane.

Connection Type						
Connection Type:	Direct IP (DHCP) 💟					

- 5. Select the connection type from its corresponding drop-down list.
 - If you selected the Direct IP, continue with the next step.
 - If you selected the PPPoE or PPPoA, continue with the Configuring PPP Authentication and Settings section to set up your username and password.
- 6. Select the Enable check box for Auto Wan Address Mode field to automatically select the WAN interfaces (ADSL/ADSL2/ADSL2+).

7. Click Save.

Configuring PPP Authentication and Settings

The PPPoE or PPPoA connection type requires authentication to be connected.

To configure the PPP authentication settings:

- 1. Open a Web browser and enter *http://home, http://gateway.2Wire.net, or http://192.168.1.254* to access the gateway user interface.
- 2. Click 🔮 on the *Home* page; the *Summary Status* page opens.

Home	Settings	Site Map					
System	Info Broadb	and LAN	Firewall	Diagnostics			
Statu	Status Link Configuration Routing DNS Resolution						
Summ	Summary Status						
Intern	Internet: • Connected						
DSL Li	nk: • Conne	cted					
Intern	Internet Details						
Conner	Broadband Link Type:		nodem - AVSL				
IP	IP Address:		5.89				
Si	Subnet Mask:		.248.0				
De	Default Gateway:).1				
Primary DNS:		202.54.2	9.5				
Se	Secondary DNS:		202.54.10.2				
H	Host Name:		home				
Domain:		gateway.	gateway.2wire.net				
MAC Address:		00:25:30	00:25:3c:91:35:40				
MTU:		1500					

- 3. Click Link Configuration; the Link Configuration page opens.
- 4. Scroll down to the PPP Authentication and Settings pane.

PPP Authentication and Settings

Username and password are required if you select PPPoE or PPPoA connection type

Username:	000D72-28091A000
Password:	
Confirm Password:	
PPP on Demand:	0 Minutes (D="always-on" connection)
Upstream MTU:	1500

- 5. Enter your user name in the Username field (this is given to you by your service provider).
- 6. Enter your password in the **Password** field (this is given to you by your service provider).
- 7. Re-enter your password in the Confirm Password field.
- 8. Enter a value for the length of time you want the PPP session to remain active in the **PPP** on **Demand** field.
 - Setting the value to **0** indicates that the PPP session will remain on all the time.
 - Setting the value between 1 to 10080 minutes, the PPP session will time-out accordingly if the gateway does not detect outbound traffic destined for the Internet in the specified time.
- 9. Click Save.

Modifying Broadband IP Addresses

By default, the gateway automatically obtains its broadband IP and DNS addresses from your service provider. If you purchased a static IP from your service provider, you need to change the broadband IP to the static IP assigned to you from your service provider.

To manually modify the broadband IP:

- 1. Open a Web browser and enter *http://home, http://gateway.2Wire.net, or http://192.168.1.254* to access the gateway user interface.
- 2. Click 🔮 on the Home page; the Summary Status page opens.

2WiRE

Home	Settings	Site Ma	P			
System	Info Broadt	and LA	N Firewall	Diagnostics		
Status Link Configuration Routing DNS Resolution						
Summ	Summary Status					
Intern	Internet: Connected					
DSL Li	DSL Link: • Connected					
Intern	Internet Details					
Broadband Link Type:		e: Builti	in modem - AD	SL		
Соппе	Connection Type:					
IF	IP Address:		172.16.6.89			
Subnet Mask:		255.2	255.255.248.0			
Default Gateway:		172.1	172.16.0.1			
P1	rimary DNS:	202.5	4.29.5			
Secondary DNS:		202.5	202.54.10.2			
н	ost Name:	home				
D	omain:	gatew	ay.2wire.net			
MAC Address:		00:25	00:25:3c:91:35:40			
MTU:		1500				
- 3. Click Link Configuration; the Link Configuration page opens.
- 4. Scroll down to the Broadband IP Network pane.

Broadband IP Network (Primary Connection)					
IP Addressing:	⊙ Obtain IP address automatically (dynamic IP or DHCP)				
	O Manually specify IP address settings:				
	IP Address:				
	Subnet Mask:				
	Default Gateway:				
DNS:	Obtain DNS information automatically				
	OManually specify DNS information:				
	Primary Server:				
	Secondary Server:				
	Tertiary Server:				
	Domain Name:				
System MAC Address:	⊙Use the built-in system MAC address: 00:25:3c:91:35:42				
	Override the built-in MAC address				
	Specify MAC address: 00:00:00:00:00:00				

5. Click the Manually specify IP address settings radio button.

- 6. Enter the following information:
 - In the IP Address field, enter the IP address you want the gateway to use. •
 - ٠ In the Subnet Mask field, enter the subnet mask you want the gateway to use.
 - In the Default Gateway field, enter the default gateway address you want the • gateway to use.
- 7. Click Save.

Specifying DNS Information Manually

By default, the gateway automatically obtains its DNS server addresses from your service provider.

- 1. Open a Web browser and enter *http://home, http://gateway.2Wire.net, or http://192.168.1.254* to access the gateway user interface.
- 2. Click 🔮 on the *Home* page; the *Summary Status* page opens.

2Wire

Home Settings Sit	е Мар
System Info Broadband	LAN Firewall Diagnostics
Status Link Configuration	Routing DNS Resolution
Summary Status	
Internet: • Connected	
DSL Link: • Connected	
Internet Details	Ruilt in modem - ADSL
Connection Type:	dhcp
IP Address:	172.16.6.89
Subnet Mask:	255.255.248.0
Default Gateway:	172.16.0.1
Primary DNS:	202.54.29.5
Secondary DNS:	202.54.10.2
Host Name:	home
Domain:	gateway.2wire.net
MAC Address:	00:25:3c:91:35:40
MTU:	1500

- 3. Click Link Configuration; the Link Configuration page opens.
- 4. Scroll down to the Broadband IP Network pane.

IP Addressing:	Obtain IP address automatically (dynamic IP or DHCP)
	OManually specify IP address settings:
	IP Address:
	Subnet Mask:
	Default Gateway:
DNS:	⊙Obtain DNS information automatically
	OManually specify DNS information:
	Primary Server:
	Secondary Server:
	Tertiary Server:
	Domain Name:
System MAC Address:	OUse the built-in system MAC address: 00:25:3c:91:35:4
	Override the built-in MAC address
	Specify MAC address: 00:00:00:00:00:00

Broadband IP Network (Primary Connection)

- 5. Click the Manually specify your DNS information radio button.
- 6. Enter the following information:
 - In the **Primary Server** field, enter the IP address of the primary DNS server that the gateway is to use for DNS name resolution.
 - In the **Secondary Server** field, enter the IP address of the secondary DNS server that the gateway is to use for DNS name resolution.
 - In the Domain Name field, enter the specific domain name to be used by the gateway.
- 7. Click Save.

Note Skip the following steps if you do not want to manually add the new DNS information to the resolution table at this time.

8. Add the new DNS information by clicking the DNS Resolution tab on the Link Configuration page; the Domain Name Server Resolution page opens.

2WiRE

Home Settin	ıgs 🛛 Site M	lap	
System Info B	roadband L	AN Firewa	II Diagnostics
Status LinkCo	nfiguration Ro	uting DNS Res	solution
Domain Name	Server Resc	lution	
Manually define a L	omain Name an	a Ir Adaress to	resolve:
Add a New DNS	Name		
DNS Name:			
IP Address:			
	A	dd To Name Reso	lution Table
Name resolutio	n table:		
Name resolutio	II LADIE.		
DNS name	IP Address	Entry Type	
gchandran	192.168.1.131	learned	
gateway.2wire.net	192,168,1,254	learned	
home	192.168.1.254	learned	
gateway	192.168.1.254	learned	

- 9. Enter the name of the primary server you defined in 6 in the DNS Name field.
- 10. Enter the primary server IP address you defined in 6 in the IP Address field.
- 11. Click Add to Name Resolution Table.

Overriding the System MAC Address

By default, the gateway uses its built-in hardware address for identification. You can override the default MAC address If you are using devices that require a different MAC address.

- 1. Open a Web browser and enter *http://home, http://gateway.2Wire.net, or http://192.168.1.254* to access the gateway user interface.
- 2. Click 🔮 on the *Home* page; the *Summary Status* page opens.

2Wire

Home	Settings	Sit	e Map]	
System li	1fo Broad	band	LAN	Firewall	Diagnostics
Status	Link Configu	ration	Routing	DNS Resolut	ion
Summa	ry Status				
Interne	t: • Conne	ected			
DSL Lin	k: • Conne	ected			
Interne	t Details				
Broadba	nd Link Typ	e:	Built in m	iodem - ADSL	
Connect	tion Type:		dhcp		
IP A	ddress:		172.16.6.	.89	
Sut	net Mask:		255.255.3	248.0	
Def	ault Gateway:		172.16.0.	.1	
Pri	mary DNS:		202.54.2	9.5	
Sec	ondary DNS:		202.54.10	0.2	
Hos	st Name:		home		
Doi	main:		gateway.2	wire.net	
MA	C Address:		00:25:3c:	91:35:40	
MT	J:		1500		

- 3. Click Link Configuration; the Link Configuration page opens.
- 4. Scroll down to the Broadband IP Network pane.

IP Addressing:	⊙ Obtain IP address automatically (dynamic IP or DHCP)					
	O Manually specify IP address settings:					
	IP Address:					
	Subnet Mask:					
	Default Gateway:					
DNS:	Obtain DNS information automatically					
	OManually specify DNS information:					
	Primary Server:					
	Secondary Server:					
	Tertiary Server:					
	Domain Name:					
System MAC Address:	⊙Use the built-in system MAC address: 00:25:3c:91:35:4;					
	Override the built-in MAC address					
	Specify MAC address: 00:00:00:00:00					

Broadband IP Network (Primary Connection)

- 5. Select the Override the built-in MAC address button.
- 6. Enter the MAC address in the corresponding field.
- 7. Click Save.

Changing to the Bridging Mode

By default, the 2Wire Gateway is configured in the routing mode.

- **Note** When routing is disabled, the NAT and the DHCP server are also disabled. Ensure that the WAN protocol is compatible to bridging mode, that is, switch PPPoE IP through Bridge LLC or Bridge VC-Mux before you disable routing.
 - 1. Open a Web browser and enter *http://home, http://gateway.2Wire.net, or http://192.168.1.254* to access the gateway user interface.
 - 2. Click O on the Home page; the Summary Status page opens.

2WRC

Home Settings	Site Map		
System Info Broadt	and LAN	Firewall	Diagnostics
Status Link Configur	ation Routing	DNS Resolut	ion
Summary Status			
Internet: • Conne	cted		
DSL Link: • Conne	cted		
Internet Details	Duille in an		
Connection Type	dhen	odem - ADSL	
IP Address:	172.16.6.	89	
Subnet Mask:	255.255.2	248.0	
Default Gateway:	172.16.0.	1	
Primary DNS:	202.54.29	9.5	
Secondary DNS:	202.54.10).2	
Host Name:	home		
Domain:	gateway.2	wire.net	
MAC Address:	00:25:3c:	91:35:40	
MTU	1500		

- 3. Click Link Configuration; the Link Configuration page opens.
- 4. Scroll down to the *Routing* pane.



- 5. Deselect the Enable check box.
- 6. Click Save.

This page is intentionally left blank.

CHAPTER 8 Finding Solutions

This section provides helpful information to solve common issues, which includes instructions to

- Diagnosing Connection Issues on page 78
- Recovering the Gateway Password on page 79
- Performing Broadband Link Tests on page 79
- Viewing the Gateway Information on page 81
- Viewing the Broadband Status on page 82
- Viewing the LAN Status on page 85
- Resetting the Gateway on page 88

Diagnosing Connection Issues

Symptoms	Problems	What to Do		
The POWER indicator on the gateway does not light.	Faulty power supply	 Verify that the AC power cable is securely connected to the gateway. Ensure that the AC power cable is not plugged in to a switched outlet that is turned off. Power up the gateway with a known good power outlet. 		
The POWER indicator on the gateway remains solid red.	System failure	Press the Reset button on the gateway for 10 seconds.		
No connection to the Internet via the Ethernet connection.	No communication is established	 Check the telephone line is properly connected. Check the BROADBAND and SERVICE indicators on the gateway, they should light green. 		
	Loose Ethernet cable connection	 Check the Ethernet cable connection on your computer and gateway, and make sure that it is securely seated in both ports. Check the ETHERNET indicator on the gateway, it should light green. Verify that you can connect to the Internet via wireless connection. 		
No connection to the Internet via the wireless connection.	No communication is established	 Check the telephone line is properly connected. Check the BROADBAND and SERVICE indicators on the gateway, they should light green. Check the WIRELESS indicator on the gateway, it should light green. 		
	Mismatch network name and/ or encryption key	 Verify the network name ("Setting up your Wireless Network" on page 26). Verify the encryption key ("Using the Encryption Key" on page 28). Check the SERVICE indicator on the gateway, it should light green. 		
	MAC address is blocked	Verify that the MAC address in question is allowed ("Using the MAC Address Filtering" on page 29).		
Weak wireless signals. Hissing or static sounds.	Radio interference	 Change the wireless settings ("Customize Private Wireless Settings" on page 31). Change the access point location ("Determining a Wireless Access Point Location" on page 4). 		
The BROADBAND indicator blinks green for an extended period of time, then turns solid red.	Broadband connection Failure	Call your service provider if the broadband connection failed to connect after 10 minutes.		
The SERVICE indicator lights red.	Broadband service authentication failure	Call your service provider if the broadband connection failed to connect after 10 minutes.		

Recovering the Gateway Password

Call your service provider if you have changed the default gateway password and misplaced the new one.

Performing Broadband Link Tests

Your gateway includes a test that helps you to diagnose broadband connection issues.

- 1. Open a Web browser and enter *http://gateway.2Wire.net* to access the gateway user interface.
- 2. Click 🔮 on the *Home* page; the *Summary Status* page opens.

	SE.				
Home	Settings	Site N	Iap		
System I	nfo Broadb	oand L	AN Fi	rewall	Diagnostics
Status	Link Configur	ation Ro	uting DM	IS Resoluti	ion
Summa	ry Status				
Interne	t: • Conne	cted			
DSL Lin	k: • Conne	cted			
Interne	t Details				
Broadba	and Link Type	e: Bui	lt in mode	em - ADSL	
Connect	tion type:	and	:p . 1 C C 00		
11 F F	wat Mark	250		0	
Def	ault Gateway	173	21601		
Pri	Primary DNS: 202 54 29		2.54.29.5		
Secondary DNS: 202.54.10		2.54.10.2			
Hos	Host Name: home		ne		
Doi	main:	qat	eway.2wir	e.net	
MA	C Address:	00:	25:3c:91:	35:40	
MT	U:	150)0		

3. Click Diagnostics; the *Link Test* page opens.

2WIRE

Home	Settings	Site N	Лар						
System I	nfo Broa	dband L	AN Firewall	Diagnostics]				
Link T	Link Test Resets								
Link Te	Warning, the	link test tak	æs several minute	s, during which br	roadband will not be available.				
Start Te	st (Start	Runs a se	ries of diagnostic	tests on your broadband link				
Test Res	ults	Refresh Pag	e This page test resul	requires that you ts	refresh the web page to view				
DSL Synchro	nization f	No DSL signa found	al was						
G. DMT	ATM Signal f	No DSL signa found	al was						
PVC Con	nection ·								
IPConne	ction -								
DNS Commun	ication .								

4. Click Start; the gateway initiates the test, and displays the test results.

Note You will be unable to access the Internet when the test is taking place.

- **5.** Interpret the issues:
 - DSL issue indicates that the DSL service is not yet activated, and/or loose cable connections on your gateway.
 - IP connection issue indicates that your service provider's network is unreachable.
 - DNS issue indicates that the DNS servers within your service provider's network are unreachable.

Viewing the Gateway Information

1. Open a Web browser and enter *http://home, http://gateway.2Wire.net, or http://192.168.1.254* to access the gateway user interface; the *Home* page opens.

<u>2</u> ₩J	SE.						
Home	Settings	Site Map					
Summa	Summary Broadband \$ 9085 kbps \$ 508 kb						
Top Ne	Top Naturanking Fostungs						
• Wii • <u>Ret</u> • <u>Ho</u> • <u>Svs</u> • <u>Int</u> att	ecurity or settin Iband Connection tion - reboot - find a compute secure your sys monitor attemp	your :sword :d					
• <u>Ga</u> set	<u>ming and Comm</u> tings	unications - mo	dify your firew	all			

2. Click Settings; the System Information page opens, displaying read-only information, for example,

2Wire

Home Settings	Site Map		
System Info Broadb	and LAN	Firewall	Diagnostics
Status Link Configura	ntion Routing	DNS Resolut	ion
Summary Status			
Internet: • Connec	ted		
DSL Link: • Connec	:ted		
Internet Details	- Ruilt in m	odem - ADSI	
Connection Type:	dhcp	odeni - Xost	' I
IP Address:	172.16.6.	89	
Subnet Mask:	255.255.2	248.0	·
Default Gateway:	172.16.0.	1	
Primary DNS:	202.54.25	9.5	
Secondary DNS:	202.54.10	0.2	
Host Name:	home		
Domain:	gateway.2	wire.net	
MAC Address:	00:25:3c:	91:35:40	
MTU:	1500		

Viewing the Broadband Status

1. Open a Web browser and enter *http://home, http://gateway.2Wire.net, or http://192.168.1.254* to access the gateway user interface; the *Home* page opens.

2Wire

Home	Settings	Site Map								
Summa	Summary									
	Broadbane	d Netwo	Firewall Status:		4011G-001 Gateway					
	Tool kops INFINITUM0002 Enabled Serial Number: 28091 A000002									
Home	Network Dev	rices								
😻 gcha	andran <u>Device D</u>	Petails								
Top Ne	etworking Fe	atures								
• <u>Wir</u>	<u>reless</u> - modify s	security or settin	ıgs							
• <u>Ref</u> bro	f <mark>resh your Broac</mark> oadband connec	<u>Iband Connection</u> tion	<u>1</u> - reconne	ct your						
• <u>Re</u> s	start your System	<u>m</u> - reboot								
 <u>Home Networking</u> - find a computer, share a file 										
• <u>Sv</u> s	tem Password -	secure your sys								
• <u>Int</u> att	<u>ernet security</u> - acks									
 <u>Gaming and Communications</u> - modify your firewall settings 										

2. Click on the Home page; the Summary Status page opens.

2WiRE

Home	Settings	Site I	Map					
System Ir	1fo Broadt	and	LAN	Firewall	Diagnostics			
Status	Link Configur	ation R	outing	DNS Resolut	ion			
Summa	Summary Status							
Internet	t: • Conne	cted						
DSL Lin	k: • Conne	cted						
Interne	t Details	≥: Bu	ilt in m	odern - ADSL				
Connect	tion Type:	dh	icp					
IP A	ddress:	17	172.16.6.89					
Sub	net Mask:	25	5.255.2	48.0				
Def	ault Gateway:	17	2.16.0.	1				
Prin	mary DNS:	20	2.54.29					
Sec	Secondary DNS:		202.54.10.2					
Hos	Host Name:		me					
Dor	Domain:		teway.2	wire.net				
MA	C Address:	00	:25:3c:	91:35:40				
МΠ	J:	15	00					

3. View the Internet information:

	·			
Item	Description			
Broadband Link Type	Built-in ADSL Modem or External Broadband Modem via Ethernet.			
Connection Type	The method by which the gateway connects to the ISP: Direct_IP, DHCP, PPPoA, or PPPoE.			
IP Address	The broadband address of your gateway.			
Subnet Mask	The subnet mask to be used by the gateway on the broadband link.			
Default Gateway	The IP address of the default gateway (default router) that the gateway connects to on the broadband link.			
Primary DNS	The IP address of the primary DNS server that the gateway is to use for DNS name resolution on the broadband link.			
Secondary DNS	The IP address of the secondary DNS server the gateway uses for DNS name resolution on the broadband link.			
Host Name	The gateway host name. This field is present only if a host name has been configured.			
Domain	The domain name associated with the gateway on the broadband link.			
MAC Address	The gateway MAC address.			
MTU	The maximum size of the packets (in bytes) sent from a computer to the network.			

Viewing the LAN Status

1. Open a Web browser and enter *http://home, http://gateway.2Wire.net, or http://192.168.1.254* in the address line; the *Home* page opens.

ī Wir	9 <u>5</u> .					
Home	Settings	Site Map				
Summa O	ary Broadband ↓ 9085 kbps ↑ 508 kbps		less prk Name: TUM0002		Firewall Status: Enabled	4011G-001 Gateway Serial Number:
Home I S gch Top Ne	Network Dev andran <u>Device D</u> etworking Fe	rices etails atures				
• <u>Win</u> • <u>Ret</u> bro	<u>reless</u> – modify s fresh your Broad oadband connect	ecurity or settin I <u>band Connection</u> tion	ect your			
• <u>Ho</u> • Str	me Networking -	- find a compute				
• <u>Int</u> att	ernet security - acks	monitor attemp				
• <u>Ga</u> set	<u>ming and Comm</u> tings	<u>unications</u> - mo	dify your fi	rewall		

2. Click Settings; the System Information page opens.

2WiRE

Home	Set	tings	Site	Map					
System	Info	Broadb	and	LAN	Firewall	Dia	gnostics		
Status	Status Password Date & Time								
System	n Info	rmatio	ı						
Manufa	Manufacturer:								
Model:			4011	4011G-001					
Serial	Numb	er:	28091	28091 A000083					
Hardwa	are Ve	rsion:	2700-	000780	-001				
Softwa	re Ver	sion:	9.1.1.	12					
Key Co	de:		52AD-	52AD-2AD4-6266-22NA-B27M					
First U	First Use Date:			ov 20 05	:30:31 UTC 2	009			
Curren	Current Date & Time:			2009 8	01:38:14				
Time S	Time Since Last Boot:								
DSL Mo	DSL Modem			A2pB025f6.d22					
System Password:			Custo	m: *****					

3. Click LAN; a page similar to the following opens, displaying the private network information and LAN devices connected to your network.

2Wire:

Home S	ettings	Site Ma	ар						
System Info	Broadba	and LA	N Fi	irewall Dia	gnos	stics			
					_				
Status W	'ireless Wir	ed Interface	s DHC	CP					
Private Ne	etwork								
Router/Ga	teway Add	ress:	192.1	68.1.254					
Subnet Ma	sk:		255.2	255.255.0					
Private Ne	twork DHC	P Info:							
Range:			192.1	68.1.64 - 192.	168.1	1.253			
Timeo	ut		8640	O seconds					
Interfaces	3								
Interface	Status								
🕂 Ethernet	Enabled								
🙌 Wireless	Enabled								
Wireless									
Wireless C	hannel:	1							
Wireless P	ower Level	: OdBr	n						
SSID Name	-	INFIN	INFINITUM0099						
Status	:	Up	Up						
SSID BI	roadcast:	enab	enable						
Securi	ty:	wep							
Domisor									
Devices									
[)evice	Inte	erface	MAC Addre	2 2	IP Address			
Unknown_OC)-eO-4c-76-a	a3-53 ⊹ E	thernet	00:e0:4c:76:a3	3:53	192.168.1.106	Device Details		
Unknown_OC)-1c-23-09-0	Of-48 ⊹ E	thernet	: 00:1c:23:09:01	f:48	192.168.1.131	Device Details		
Traffic Sta	tistics								
Interfac	e Bytes	Packets	rrors						
	Etherne	et -							
Port 1 Trans	mit 822334	1383	0						
Port 1 Recei	ve 218367	2003	0						
Transmi*	wireles	0	262						
Receive	0	0	0						
	-	-	-						

Resetting the Gateway

Resetting the gateway may cause your broadband connection to not function properly and may require reconfiguration of the system to reconnect the broadband service.

1. Open a Web browser and enter *http://home, http://gateway.2Wire.net, or http://192.168.1.254* in the address line; the *Home* page opens.

	ਗ਼੶					
Home	Settings	Site Map				
Summ. Summ. Home Be geh Top Ne Se br Re br Re br Syr Syr Str Str Str Str Str Str Str Str Str St	Ary Broadbane 9085 kbps \$ 9085 kbps \$ 508 kbps Network Dev andran Device D advand connect start your Syster me Networking - ernet security - acks ming and Comm tings	d Wire Netwo Netwo INFINI rices etails atures ecurity or settin band Connection tion n - reboot - find a compute secure your sys monitor attemp unications - mo	eless ork Name: TUM0002 195 1 - reconned r, share a fil tem with a p ted and bloc dify your fir	ct your le bassword cked ewall	Firewall Status: Enabled	4011G-001 Gateway Serial Number: 28091A000002

2. Click on the Home page; the Summary Status page opens.

SWISE.

Home	Settings	Site Map							
System	Info Broadb	and LAN	Firewall	Diagnostics					
Statu	s Link Configur	ation Routing	DNS Resolut	ion					
		,							
Summ	ary Status								
Intern	et: • Conne	cted							
DSL Li	nk: • Conne	cted							
Intern	iet Details								
Broad	band Link Type	e: Built in m	nodem - ADSL						
Соппе	ction Type:	dhcp							
IF	Address:	172.16.6	172.16.6.89						
S	ubnet Mask:	255.255.	255.255.248.0						
D	efault Gateway:	172.16.0	172.16.0.1						
Pi	rimary DNS:	202.54.2	202.54.29.5						
Se	Secondary DNS:		202.54.10.2						
н	Host Name:								
D	omain:	gateway.2	2wire.net						
м	AC Address:	00:25:3c	:91:35:40						
м	ITU:	1500							
1									

3. Click Diagnostics; the *Link Test* page opens.

SWISE.

Home	Setting	s Site	e Map						
System I	nfo Bro	adband	LAN	Firewall	Diagnostics]			
Link T	Link Test Resets								
<u>Link</u> Te	Warning, th est	e link test ·	takes seve	ral minutes,	, during which b	roadband will not be available.			
Start Te	st	Start		Runs a ser	ies of diagnostic	tests on your broadband link			
Test Res	ults	Refresh	Page	This page i test result	requires that yo s	u refresh the web page to view			
DSL Synchro	nization	No DSL sig found	gnal was						
G. DMT.	ATM Signal	No DSL signal was found							
PVC Con	nection								
IPConne	ection								
DNS Commu	nication								

4. Click Resets; the following page opens.

2Wire

Home Setting	s Site Map							
System Info Bro	oadband LAN	Firewall Diagnostics						
Link Test Resets								
Link Test	ne link test takes seve	aral minutes, during which broadband will not be available.						
Start Test	Start	Runs a series of diagnostic tests on your broadband link						
Test Results	Refresh Page	This page requires that you refresh the web page to view test results						
DSL Synchronization	No DSL signal was found							
G. DMT ATM Signal	No DSL signal was found							
PVC Connection								
IP Connection								
DNS Communication								

- 5. Click the button you want to clear or reset.
 - Clear Device List. The Clear button clears all devices from the Local Network list.
 - *Reset IP/PPP*. The **Reset** button resets the PPP connection and/or releases and renews the broadband IP address.
 - Reset Broadband. The Reset button re-establishes the broadband link.
 - Reset System. The **Reboot** button allows you to restart the gateway.
 - *Reset to Factory Default State.* The **Reset** button resets the gateway to an unprovisioned default state. Doing so will remove all your saved configuration settings, while resetting them to their respective default factory settings.